BOARD OF PHYSICAL THERAPY MINUTES

DATE:	November 1, 2019
TIME:	9:00 AM CST
LOCATION:	Iris Conference Room 665 Mainstream Drive, 1st Floor Nashville, TN 37243
MEMBERS PRESENT:	LeAnn F. Childress, PT, (interim) Board Chair Jane David, PT Board Member Kelly O'Connor, PT Board Member Ronald V. Barredo, PT, Board Member
STAFF PRESENT:	Noranda French, Board Director Mary V. Bennett, Board Manager Kara Love, Board Administrator Lara E. Gill, Senior Associate General Counsel John Tidwell, HRB Director Rachael Foutch, Disciplinary Coordinator Butch Jack, Director of Fiscal
MEMBERS ABSENT:	David Harris, Board Chair
GUESTS:	Elaine Eaton, TnPAP Representative

<u>Vote</u>

A vote was taken prior to, Call to Order, electing an Acting Board Chair. Dr. Ronald Barredo, made a motion, seconded by, Kelly O'Connor, to elect LeAnn Childress as interim Board Chair.

Call to Order

A roll call of Board Members was initiated. With a quorum present, Ms. Childress called the meeting to order at 9:04 A.M. CST.

Minutes

After review, Ms. David wanted clarity regarding Item five (5) in the minutes. Mary Bennett, Board Manager, provided clarity. Ms. O'Connor made a motion, seconded by Dr. Barredo, to approve the minutes of the August 9, 2019 meeting as written. The motion carried.

Office of General Counsel Report

Lara E. Gill, Senior Associate General Counsel, presented the Office of General Counsel report as follows:

As of October 17, 2019 The Board of Physical Therapy has 6 open cases:

5 - Physical Therapist and 1 - Physical Therapist Assistant

Consent Order

Ms. Gill presented to the board the current consent orders for approval.

- Courtney L. Drzyzga, PT, License No. 8789 Ms. Drzyzga (not present) practiced six (6) months on an expired license. Ms. Drzyzga has agreed to the terms of the order. After review, Dr. Barredo made motion to accept the consent order as written, seconded by Ms. O'Connor. The motion carried.
- 2. Donald Reagan, PT, License No. 11548 Mr. Reagan (not present) has agreed to the terms of the order. After review, Ms. O'Connor made motion to accept the consent order as written, seconded by Dr. Barredo. The motion carried.
- Martha G. Hopper, PT, License No. 5143 Ms. Hopper (not present) practiced eight (8) months on an expired license. Ms. Hopper has agreed to the terms of the order. After review, Ms. O'Connor made motion to accept the consent order as written, seconded by Ms. David. The motion carried.
- 4. Barbara A. Hargrove, PT, License No. 384 Ms. Hargrove (not present) practiced thirtyeight (38) months on an expired license. Ms. Hargrove has agreed to the terms of the order. After review, Ms. O'Connor made motion to accept the consent order as written, seconded by Dr. Barredo. The motion carried.

Investigation and Disciplinary Reports

Ms. Rachael Foutch, Disciplinary Coordinator in the Office of Investigations presented the disciplinary report as follow:

There are six (6) physical therapists on probation, three (3) suspended, one (1) revoked, and one (1) surrendered. There are currently fifteen (15) open complaints from year to-date. There are eighteen (18) closed complaints and currently fourteen (14) open complaints that are under investigation.

One (1) physical therapist assistant was reprimanded, one (1) is on probation, one (1) suspended, and one (1) revoked. There is currently six (6) open complaints year to-date. There are three (3) closed complaints, and nine (9) open complaints under investigation.

Division of Health Licensure and Regulations

Butch Jack, presented the financial report: Tennessee Board of Physical Therapy Actual Revenue & Expenditures for Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2019: Payroll Expenditures (701-702) \$115,596.70, Other Expenditures (703-725) \$51,997.75, Total Allocated Expenditures \$129,285.19, Cumulative Carryover \$632,134.44.

Applicant Interviews/Reviews

- A. Provisional License Applicant
 - 1. Palak Gandhi Ms. Gandhi was present. Board consultant Brigina Wilkerson was contacted to speak regarding the process of Ms. Gandhi's PT provisional license application and the requirements needed. Ms. Wilkerson reminded the Board that Ms. Gandhi had a PTA provisional license and to ensure that the 480 hours have been met and submitted to the Board prior to the issuance of the provisional license for the PT application. Ms. Wilkerson cautioned that the hours from the PTA provisional license cannot be used in conjunction with obtaining the PT provisional license. Dr. Barredo made motion to approve Ms. Gandhi for a provisional Physical Therapist license of which the required 480 supervised hours must be completed within forty-eight (48) weeks under a licensed Physical Therapist. Ms. O'Connor seconded the motion. The motion carried.
- B. Applicant Interview
 - Nolan Beede, PT Prior conviction(s) Mr. Beede was contacted via telephone in order to address the board. Kelly O'Conner requested Mr. Beede to explain the incident, and provide his plan for practicing in Tennessee. Board Attorney, Lara Gill, asked Mr. Beede if the Texas Board asked him about the findings on his background. Ronald Barredo questioned the timing of the incident, (which is over 5 years old) Mr. Beede was able to elaborate and answer all questions, as the board reviewed his file. Dr. Barredo made a motion to approve Nolan Beede's application, Ms. David seconded the motion. The motion carried.
 - 2. Cheyenne Cernak, PTA Prior conviction(s) Ms. Cernak was present. Ms. Childress asked Ms. Cernak to explain the incident. Ms. Cernak spoke on life changing events, and her passion to help others. Dr. Barredo asked about the programs that she underwent, Ms. Cernak explained that the program was not court ordered. Dr. Barredo wanted to know if the Nevada Board reviewed the incidents on her background. Ms. Cernak answered they have. Jane David wanted to clarify that this incident was prior to obtaining a license as a Physical Therapist. Ms. O'Connor wanted to know if Ms. Cernak had any run-ins with the law since this incident, and Ms. Cernak replied that has not. Board Attorney, Lara Gill asked for proof of the rehabilitation programs. Dr. Barredo made a motion to approve Ms. Cernak's application, contingent upon proof of rehabilitation from Nevada, Ms. David seconded the motion. The motion carried.
 - 3. Kaitlyn Englehart, PT Prior conviction(s) Mrs. Englehart was contacted via telephone in order to address the board. Dr. Berrado asked Ms. Englehart to explain the incident. Ms. O'Conner asked Ms. Englehart about her military status.

She is currently a military spouse. Ms. David asked for clarification on how many DUI chargers she has, and board administrators clarified that Ms. Englehart had only one DUI. Dr. Barredo made a motion to approve Kaitlyn Englehart's application, seconded by Ms. O'Connor. The motion carried.

TnPAP Report

Ms. Elaine Eaton, Representative from TnPAP reported - July 1, 2019 October 31, 2019. TnPAP is currently monitoring 2 Physical Therapist, 3 referrals from the Board due to history of arrest, 1 under monitoring, 3 discharged. 2 Physical Therapist Assistants are being monitored, 2 referrals from the Board due to history of arrest, 2 discharged.

Ratification of Initial Determinations

Dr. Barredo made a motion, seconded by Ms. O'Connor, to ratify the list presented on newly licensed Physical Therapists, Physical Therapists Assistants, and Physical Therapists with Compact Privileges, and Physical Therapists Assistants with Compact Privileges, reinstatements, and closed files. The motion carried.

Newly Licensed		
Physical Therapist with Compacting Privileges		
Bellis Jennifer Dawn	Hendrix Patricia Mary	
Bock Jonathan Jacob	Kramer Keaton Emmanuel	
Cannon Phillip Randal Jr	Lasiter Cody Stutson	
Cloos Rizalyn S	Patel Chiragkumar Prabhudas	
Cooper Cortni A	Pilgrim Mary	
Eusebio Stephanie K	Preston Ashton	
Fitchpatrick Kira	Teemant Noelle Lesaicherre	
Harding Landon Drew	Travis Scott Richard	
Haskell Ryan Patrick	Ward Whitney M	

Physical Therapist Assistants with Compacting Privileges	Reinstatements	Reinstatements	
Clark Isabeau	Baer Raymond Mark	Chapple Angel M	
Cloern Kelly Frances	Dow Hillary Taylor	Faulkner Maria Claire	
Haring Elyssa Jean	Lancaster Courtney Jeanne Dr.	Hill Cynthia Shrader	
Harris Ashlee	Leclair Christopher R.	Miller Susan Danielle	
Shepherd Patty Sue	Sentell Kara-Jayne	Overholt Stella R	
Stockbridge Karyn			

Newly Licensed	
Physical Therapist and Physical Therapist Assistant	
Accordino Nicola	Juskowich Jennifer Patterson

Alcott Xue	Lantis Kirstin Noel
Allison Gracelyn	Lempicky Vanessa
Altenhoff Madison Marie	Leveque Jemina Sterline Ms.
Andersen Ian Patrick	Logan Amy Christina
Anderson Collin	Kamrath Marie Anne
Anderson Geoffrey Tyler	Kennedy John
Anderson Megan Nicole Ms.	Kwiatkowski Jason Kyle Mr.
Applegate Micah Katherine	Mackey Maranda Lynn
Aubin Justin Micheal	Macleod Ian Gordon
Austin Clayton Mitchell	Lafferty Amber Michelle
Austin Lucy Lemieux PTA	Mauney Alexander
Austin Noelle Maureen	Laznik Joseph Steven III
Avila Justin	Lewis Nicole Anne
Baker Andrew Robert Mr.	Mcclerking Emmanuel
Ball Stephan A.	Lightfoot Charquita
Balthrop Alexandria	Little Kelley
Barker Bradley	Marple Amy Marie
Batty Chase Andrew	Marshall Amy Ms.
Bedford Blake	Mettler Jessica Lynn
Beede Kelsey	Marshall Heather Ayla
Bellavance Samantha	Martin Brooks Everett
Bennett Tiffany	Martin Dustin Blaine Dr.
Berry Zachary Dr.	Martin Kelvin Jr
Bishop Carolyn Crackel	Massengale Meredith
Blackwelder Grace Margaret	Miller Skylar Waine
Bonefas Alexa Meghan Dr.	Maynord Kara
Booth Kathryn Kyle	Mcadory Cortney Dr.
Bragg David II Mr	Mccomiskey Sean A Dr.
Bremer Brent	Mccormack Kellie Ms.
Brooks James	Moses Troy Bryan Mr
Brown Leslie Marie Mrs	Moss Andrew Bryant
Buck Kelly	Murray Kayla
Buck Michael Adam	Nabors Justin Crane
Bulla Madison Taylor	Nickelberry Terrica
Campbell Conner James	Mcgurr Marissa
Cantrell Leilani Marie	Nicole Casey Lea
Capps Kirby Jo	Meehan Tara
Carcone Amanda Mrs.	Mitchell Caballero Catherine
Carpio Liana	Patel Flora Narendra
Carrillo Luis Antonio	Patterson Kaylee
Carroll Ian	Moadi Amro
Carver Emily	Peretic Hannah Praise
Cash Brett	Moore Aaron Wilson
Ceolla Mallory	Peterson Hannah Ann PTA

Chavez Alyssa	Moore Elizabeth Louise
Chazin Daniel Tygielski	Morris Gregory Allen
Clabo Alexander S	Naish Kelsey
Clemson Elizabeth Danielle Ms.	O'Driscoll John Anthony
Cobb Emily	Osterloh Kay Dieter
Coburn Nathaniel Shane Dr.	Outlaw Sequoyha
Colquhoun Kylle	Patterson Taylor
Connors Sabine	Patton Erin
Contel Kathryn	Petett Spencer Ross
Cook Samantha Colleen	Petrel Jamie Lynn
Correia Mary Catherine	Posner Tiana Lehua Maria
Crawford Nathan Andrew	Potter Tonya D
Crews Drew Isaac	Petz Jessica
Czyz Sarah-Anne	Phillips Alexandria Leigh
Dale Sarah	Puryear Bianca M
Danaei Jamie	Ping Alexandra Ms
Darnell Makaylah	Prall Jared Dr
Davis John Alexander Dr.	Pratt Mitchell Dr.
Dearing Kailyn	Pratt Sarah Kathryn
Detwiler Kirsten	Race Julia May Dr
Donaghe Melissa	Raby Savannah Madison
Donaldson Kierstan Bryianna	Rayner Stacy Westlake Mr
Drake Maria Elizabeth	Ragan Matthew
Driscoll Shari	Sanders Nicholas Blake PTA
Dumbuya Yahya	Sands Charles Odell
Dyer Nathan Robert	Reeves Katie Leigh
Edwards Jessica Lee Ms.	Savage Marlina
Edwards Kayla	Rogers Brooke Mrs.
Elmore Jonathan Mr	Schmidt Eliza Beth
England Kara Jonette	Rogers Kayla Shea
Everett Phillip	Schumann Kari Allison
Fain Christine Nicole	Ruiz Kelli Yvette Mrs.
Ferrell Tyler	Russo Rachel
Fitzwater Sydney	Seligman Michael Dale
Flood Cynthia Ann ms	Shine Nathaniel
Florendo Alfred Martin Mr.	Smith Michelle White
Forbes Kris Alan	Ryan Kelly Marjorie
Fountain Melinda Kaye	Satterfield Caleb
Garcia Cindy	Smith Olivia
Gebler Samantha Marie	Scarborough Ty Garrett
Gentry Ashley	Snow Elizabeth
Gentry Ross Chamberlain	Shaneman Tara Megan
George Brandon David Mr.	Staggs Andrea Michelle

Gibson Laurie Ann	Staggs Kari
Gilmore Kendra	Sherrod Eden
Gilson Tessa	Shingleton Kaylie Marie Ms
Gleason Jennifer Lynn Mrs.	Siebenmorgen Sadra
Glenn Matthew	Stoll Philip Michael
Godoy Mata Alma Lidia	Simmons Jacob M Mr
Grady Jason Tyler	Sinclair Stacey Marie Ms.
Griffin Joseph	Smith Kelli
Grimes Kerri	Smith Tyler Dr.
Hand Emily	Stanley Sarah Apperson
Hanson James	Stevens Mark Andrew
Hardy Jessy Mrs.	Strickland Jackie Dwayne PTA
Harris Ezekiel	Stubbs Jason Mr
Harris Kristyn	Tapp Ryan
Hartless Joshua	Taylor Jeffrey Bruce Dr.
Hegstrom Nora	Terrebonne Peter Jr
Hendershot Amity	Thomas Morgan Dr
Hendley Madison Mrs.	Tate Savannah Lee
Henes David	Thrasher Vickie
Henson Clay Dr.	Thornburg Macey Cherie
Higginson James Caleb	Townsend Mary Allison Ms
Hill Krysten Kelly	Vega Sarah
Hoch Nicole Marie	Wade Hannah Miller
Hoge Cameron David	Walenta Kyle
Holway Michael	Walton Hannah C Dr.
Hudson Marcus	Waters Grace
Ireland Rebekah Dr.	Webber Elizabeth Claire
Jambor Rogers Elizabeth Ann	Trott Haley Ann
Jansen Trey William	Westerbeck Hannah Elizabeth
Jenkins Jeremy	Wilkinson Sadie Miss
Johnson Hannah Rebecca	Wallace Shannon
Jones Mackenzie Sells	Williamson Katherine Michelle
Jordon Max K Dr	Woods Morgan Chelsea
Kalb Megan	Wiley Steven Keith
Keelon Collin James PTA	Williams Ashlei Monique
Kelly Emily	Willis Tim
King Charity L Mrs	Woodall Anna
Krafft Diane Lynne	Woodard Sherrod
Lampley Gabrielle Lynn	Young Cortney Dr.

Closed Files		
Physical Therapist and Physical Therapist Assistant		
Allen Corey Matthew	Kinsler Kaitlyn Mae Marie	
Bandi Manjari	Lawrence Amy K.	

Barajas Angela Marie Ms	Longhurst Tracy Nicole
Barksdale Brittany Nicole	Lubrico Noemi Taneza MRS
Batson Nicholas	Lyle Leslie Kevin
Blue Vakiesha Michelle	Mamaril Aaron Castro Mr
Bohannon Lucy Brittney PTA	Mccaig Emiy Dr.
Bostic Leah	Mccartherens Demetrius
Bowen Sandricka Marsha	Mclemore Victor L
Brazelton Allison Clarke	Melendez Arlene
Brown Tyler Brown	Murdock Brittany
Burja Sebastian	Neely Jessica Julianne
Casson-Robinson Nakia	Nguyen Cuong Duy Mr
Castano Claudia P Mrs	Nobel Sarah
Coffey Amanda Hall	Owens Brittney Paige
Coleman Monica Denise	Patton Erica Lynn
Coleman Scott Cross	Pease Megan
Coyne Alex	Periya Perumal Kadarkaraiyandi Sivarajan
Davis Jr Kenneth Jr Mr	Person Amy Elizabeth
Douglas Kristin Nicole	Pineda-Faldas Donna Lee
Dozier Caitlin Claire	Poe Angela Shontia Miss
Duncavage Jennifer Jeremias Dr	Poe Lora
Dye Doni Leigh	Pratt Pung Brigitte Ms
Escano Allan Sayson PTA	Richardson Ethan
Ewell Melvin B	Riddle Steven Trevor Mr.
Ferguson Jessica	Rivera Ve'Lez Suleima Marie
Foote Kelly	Robinson-Bullock Casey
Foster Rachel Mary	Robinson-Bullock Casey Suzanne
Fox Timothy Adam Dr.	Rose Robert D
Frazier Hannah Jo	Rowan Lucas
Garrett Brittany Mccall	Rudd Kystal
Goff Kensie	Rutledge Elizabeth
Goins Dalton Mr.	Ryder Michael Gene Dr
Graziano Matthew John	Sands Charles Odell
Gribble Cassidy	Schuller Christina Marie
Groft Elias Jordan	Shelton Corey Whitt
Hancock Elizabeth O'Nea	Shepard Sarah
Harrington Amber Nicole	Sims Sharon Walsh
Hayes Mary Grace	Soni Dhwani Satishkumar
Healy Ethan	Stonebrook Julia
Henderson Molly	Stpierre Erin
Hill Douglas Brian	Taylor Maryella Jane
Hill Kenneth C	Tiedeman Devany Ann
Howell Carly	Trindal Paige Marie
Hudson Anita Evette	Tucker Leonard III
Huffman Kaitlin	Uchida Nicole Ashley

Hulan Patrick Ross DPT	Wade Kelsey Makayla
Huntsman Shawn Tyler Mr	Wade Kelsey Makayla
Jackson Katelyn Morgan	Walker Aaron James David
Jaurigue Shella Robles	Washburn Daciana Lyn
Kapadia Niyati Mahesh	Wiley John Daniel Mr.
Katam Prasanth Kumar	Wimberly Alexandria
Keogh Amy	Wiseman Amanda Joy
Key Joshua	Yanes Elena English PTA
Kidd Coy Daniel	Zaka Sarah Hanna
King Sharonica Shanta	

BOARD OF PHYSICAL THERAPIST ADMINISTRATOR REPORT November 1, 2019

This is an administrative report from Kara Love, Board Administrator. The information contained in this report will keep the Board aware of all essential activities pertaining to licensure for Physical Therapist and Physical Therapist Assistants.

STATISTICAL DATA

The following are the total active licensee as of October 25, 2019:

PT	РТА
Active Licensees 6028	Active Licensees 4003
PT Compact 52	PTA Compact 27

LICENSURE STATUS TOTALS FROM THE MONTHS OF May 9, 2019 through October 25, 2019

РТ	РТА
New applications received 94	New applications received 53
New licenses issued 55	New licenses issued 35
Reinstated 17	Reinstated 10
Number of renewals 1217	Number of renewals 803
Number of renewals online 937	Number of renewals online 628
Number of Provisional license 5	Number of Provisional license 2
Number of licensees who retired 31	Number of licensees who retired 17
Licensees Expired 111	Licensees Expired 56
Closed Files 67	Closed Files 54

For PTs, the number of renewals online during this period constituted a usage rate of 77%. For PTAs, the number of renewals online constituted a usage rate of 78%.

ADMINISTRATORS REPORT

Board of Compact PT/PTA November 1, 2018

This is an Administrative Report from Thomasina Scharkley, Compact Board Administrator. The information contained in this report will keep the board aware of all essential activities pertaining to licensure for PT/PTA Compact.

STATISTICAL REPORT

The following are the total active licensees as of October 25th, 2018:

Active Privileges – 92

Licensing activities from May 11th 2019 through October 25th 2019:

CPT/CPTA	
New CPT privileges issued – 36	
New CPTA privileges issued-9	
Number of renewals - 11	
Number of TN PTs with Compacts in othe states - 56	r
Number of TN PTAs with Compacts in other states - 9	n
Expired - 5	
Terminated - 3	

For Compact PT/PTAs, the number of renewals online during this period constituted a usage rate of 0%. 100% of compact privileges are processed through FSBPT.

Total Revenue generated from the Compact since July 2018 is \$2,448.00 Discuss & Take action, regarding correspondence

- A. Jaime Loeffel, PT CE Audit 2017-2018 Ms. Loeffel was present for the board meeting. Ms. Loeffel spoke to the Board regarding her interpretation of the renewal rules, in her statement she admits that she simply overlooked the 24 month period in the rules. Dr. Barredo clarified that the CEU's were obtained outside of the renewal cycle. Ms. O'Connor wanted to make clear that Ms. Loeffel must take responsibility for her interpretation of the rules. Ms. O'Connor made a motion to deny Jaime Loeffel request to waive audit fees, seconded by Dr. Barredo. The motion carried.
- B. Megan Moore, PTA License No. 2813 Requesting for extension of CE hours Ms. Moore was not present for the board meeting. Dr. Barredo asked about Ms. Moore renewal cycle, is she being proactive or reactive? Noranda French explained that this request is for the current cycle. Ms. David wanted the expiration date for Ms. Moore's license; July 2019 is her renewal month. Ms. O'Connor made a motion to deny Megan Moores's request. Dr. Barredo seconded the motion. The motion carried.

Discuss and take action regarding legislation

Board Attorney, Lara Gill informed the board that there is information on the OGC report which may need to be addressed at a later date. Ms. Gill wanted to table until the next meeting a discussion about the processes and CE providers.

Discuss and take action regarding rulemaking hearings, rule amendments and policies

- A. Taskforce rule changes Tabled until January Meeting
- B. Procedures for adding items to agenda Tabled until February Meeting
- C. Approval of CEU Providers Tabled until February Meeting
- D. Discussion of Excess Funds Tabled until January Meeting

Discuss old/new Business

A. Discussion on dry needling by the Tennessee Physical Therapy Association, Amy Breedlove TPTA Executive Director, and Allen Mead TPTA Chapter President wanted clarity with the approval of dry needling. TPTA approves providers for dry needling courses for one (1) year. The Board will review the course. TPTA wants to know if it is acceptable to approve individual dry needling courses. Board Attorney, Lara Gill pointed out that the TPTA approvals are usually recognized by the Board. Noranda French wanted to make sure the policy is updated to reflect the one (1) year approval.

Dr. Barredo made a motion, seconded by Ms. O'Connor to approve Dr. Ma's Integrative Dry Needling Level 1 #2019-143course. The motion carried.

B. LeAnn Childress want to have a taskforce meeting in January to go over the redline rules. The taskforce members are:

David Harris, David Finch, Dr. Barredo, Kelly O'Connor, LeAnn Childress, Dr. Cathy Hinton, Dr. Alan Meade, Dr. Scott Newton, and Amy Breedlove.

Upcoming Board Meeting Dates

February 7, 2020 May 8, 2020 August 7, 2020 November 13, 2020

Adjournment

There being no other business to discuss, a motion was made by Kelly O'Connor, seconded by Dr. Ronald Barredo, to adjourn the November 1, 2019 board meeting. The motion carried.

The meeting adjourned at 12:30pm.

THESE MINUTES WERE RATIFIED AT THE FEBRUARY 7, 2020 BOARD MEETING